
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
November 25, 2024 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Draft Minutes of the 10/31/24 Board Meeting    1 
(2)       October Resident Council Minutes      2 

 
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT         Verbal 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        3 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)       Survey Update        Verbal 
(2)       Life Enrichment Update       Verbal 
(3)       3rd quarter Foundation Financials      4 

   
B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report      5 

 
C.  Business 

(1)    Financials         6 

(2)       2025 Operating Budgets        7 

(3)       Resolution 2024 – 3 – Foundation Trustee Appointment – Buday  8 

(4)       Resolution 2024 – 4 – Foundation Trustee Appointment – Jonkhoff 9 

 

D. Medical Staff 
(1)       Elizabeth Mazzella, NP        10 

            
G.T.P. Announcements   

(1)     Next Board Meeting – December 20, 2024 
      

11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 
Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 31, 2024 MEETING 

 
 
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Haider Kazim, Carol Crawford       Board  
  Gerard Bodalski, Darcey Gratton        Staff  
 
ABESENT: TJ Andrews                 Commission  
         
GUESTS:  

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:00am by Board Chair Mary Marois at the Governmental Center.    

 
First Public Comment – None 
 
County Liaison Report – None  
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Marois asked if there were additions, changes or corrections to 
the agenda.  Motion was made by Kazim to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by 
Crawford and carried unanimously.  
     
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with 
by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that any 
item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  
Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Draft Minutes of the 9/26/24 Board Meeting 
(2)       Draft Minutes of the 10/17/24 Board Meeting 
(3)       Closed Minutes of the 10/17/24 Board Meeting 
(4)       September Resident Council Minutes 

 
Motion was made by Crawford to approve the Consent Calendar as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Kazim and carried unanimously.  
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – None 
 
Chairman Report – No report. 
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois reviewed September’s Service Excellence Awards. 
  
Cottage Master Plan Update – Eckert Wordell –Bodalski shared continued progress has been 
made with Eckert Wordell providing an estimate on renovation upgrades for the Cottages.  
Eckert Wordell provided a matterporting 360 review of the space throughout the cottages to 

Page 3 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

allow a virtual tour.  A $10,000 grant from Rotaries Charities was received to help fund the cost 
of the estimate. 
 
Annual State Survey – Bodalski reported the Plan of Correction (POC) for both Health and Life 
Safety Survey that was conducted during the week of September 16th have both been accepted.  
The Fire Marshall returned to review the Life Safety POC and determined the Pavilions were 
compliant.  Bodalski shared the surveyors have not yet returned for the health survey to review 
the citations.  Bodalski reviewed all of the corrections.  The board recognized the difficulty of 
receiving a perfect survey and stated they were pleased with the outcome and extended their 
gratitude to the staff for their progress. 
 
Quality Measures Summary – Bodalski reviewed the summary provided in the packet and 
answered board member questions.   
 
3rd Quarter Overtime Report – Bodalski reviewed the report and answered board member’s 
questions.      
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – Bodalski reviewed the monthly report for September and 
answered board members’ questions. 
 
Financial Report – Bodalski presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for September 2024 and answered board members’ questions.  Motion made by Crawford to 
accept the financial operations report as presented.  Motion seconded by Kazim and carried 
unanimously.  
Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
2025-2028 Capital Budget – Bodalski reviewed the details of the proposed 2025-2028 capital 
budget.  Discussed including an amendment process for the budget as costs may increase over 
the years.  Motion was made by Crawford to approve the 2025-2028 Capital Budget as 
presented.  Motion seconded by Kazim and carried unanimously.  
Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
2025 Operating Budgets – Bodalski presented the proposed operating budget.  Board 
members discussed and requested for the budget to show a detailed breakdown of the 
Cottages.  The Board also requested to table the discussion of a new legal entity until legal 
counsel could be present.  The Board agreed to table the approval of the 2025 Operating 
Budgets and agenda item “Cottage Governance Recommendation” to the November agenda.  
Bodalski will reach out to legal counsel to attend.   
 
Proposed Teamsters Local 214 RN Unit 2025-2027 Agreement – Bodalski reported that a 
three year agreement was reached with the Teamsters Local 214 RN Unit that consists of an 
increase to base wages of 5% for 2025 effective November 3, 2024.  In addition, employees will 
receive retention pay equal to sixty-five cents ($.65) per hour for each hour actually worked 
between December 1, 2023 and November 30, 2024.  To receive retention pay, individuals must 
be employed at the time of payment, which will be prior to December 25, 2024.  Motion was 
made by Crawford to ratify the Proposed Teamsters Local 214 RN Unit 2025-2027 Agreement 
as presented, seconded by Kazim and carried unanimously.  Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – 
yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
Proposed Teamsters Local 214 LPN Unit 2025-2027 Agreement – Bodalski reported that a 
three year agreement was reached with the Teamsters Local 214 LPN Unit that consists of an 

Page 4 of 44



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

increase to base wages of 4% for 2025 effective November 3, 2024.  In addition, employees will 
receive retention pay equal to sixty-five cents ($.65) per hour for each hour actually worked 
between December 1, 2023 and November 30, 2024.  To receive retention pay, individuals must 
be employed at the time of payment, which will be prior to December 25, 2024.  Motion was 
made by Crawford to ratify the Proposed Teamsters Local 214 LPN Unit 2025-2027 Agreement 
as presented, seconded by Kazim and carried unanimously.  Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – 
yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
Proposed Teamsters Local 214 General Unit 2025-2027 Agreement – Bodalski reported that 
a three year agreement was reached with the Teamsters Local 214 General Unit that consists of 
an increase to base wages of 3% for 2025 effective November 3, 2024.  In addition, employees 
will receive retention pay equal to sixty-five cents ($.65) per hour for each hour actually worked 
between December 1, 2023 and November 30, 2024.  To receive retention pay, individuals must 
be employed at the time of payment, which will be prior to December 25, 2024.  Motion was 
made by Kazim to ratify the Proposed Teamsters Local 214 General Unit 2025-2027 Agreement 
as presented, seconded by Crawford and carried unanimously.  Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim 
– yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
Proposed 2025 Non-Union Wage Recommendation – Bodalski reviewed the proposed 2025 
non-union wage scales, with recommendation to increase base wages by 4% for all non-union 
grades with flexibility for outliers.  In addition, employees will receive retention pay equal to 
sixty-five cents ($.65) per hour for each hour actually worked between December 1, 2023 and 
November 30, 2024.  To receive retention pay, individuals must be employed at the time of 
payment, which will be prior to December 25, 2024.  Motion was made by Crawford to approve 
the proposed 2025 Non-union Wage Scale as presented, seconded by Crawford and carried 
unanimously.  Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
Request to Purchase – Asphalt Repairs – Bodalski reviewed the request to repair the asphalt 
in the parking lot.  Three bids were solicited and the winning bid going to Grand Traverse 
Sealcoating & Striping to be completed fall 2024.   Motion was made by Kazim to repair the 
Asphalt as presented in the amount of $9,111.  Motion was seconded by Crawford and carried 
unanimously.  Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes. 
 
Cottage Governance Recommendation – The Board tabled the discussion on Cottage 
Governance Recommendation until November per discussion under the Operating Budgets.  
 
Resolution 2024 – 3 – 2025 Proposed Cottages Rate Changes – Bodalski reviewed the 
proposed changes to the cottage rates to increase by 6%.  Kazim noted the increase of these 
rates could have an impact on the Foundation’s ability to fund the scholarships that are awarded 
each year and recommended speaking to the Foundation’s Advisory Committee first.  Bodalski 
agreed to table the discussion for November in order to provide more details on the 
scholarships.   
 
Korinne Swain, O.D - Consulting Privileges - Bodalski reviewed the request of Korinne 
Swain, O.D., to have consulting privileges as recommended by Medical Director Dr. April 
Kirkowski, M.D. Motion was made by Kazim to approve Korinne Swain, O.D., for consulting 
privileges. Motion was seconded by Crawford and carried unanimously.  
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting November 25, 2024  
(2) Mary recognized Kazim for all of his work and praised his work in the community.   

Page 5 of 44



DRAFT  

 

4 
 

 
Second Public Comment – none 
 
Meeting adjourned at 11:20 am 
 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 6 of 44



PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
October 17, 2024 

 
The October 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was 
called to order at 11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Samantha Mahon. 
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
The Lord’s Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance were recited. 
 
Members Present: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
Birch Pavilion: 4 residents attended. 
Cherry Pavilion: 2 residents attended. 
Dogwood Pavilion: 3 residents attended. 
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Samantha Mahon, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Lisa Tellings, Administrative Assistant - Forefront Dining Services 
Catherine Jasso – Environmental Services Manager 
 
Guest: American Sign Language Interpreter (ASL) 
 
Old Business: 
There was not any old business from the previous meeting that needed to be brought 
up for discussion or to follow-up on. 
 
Outings for November 2024: 
Walmart Outing: Friday 11/15 at 11am  
Cracker Barrel Outing: Wednesday 11/6 at 11am 
 
Special Events for November 2024:  
Pizza Party will be offered in November. Date and time to be determined.  
Thursday, November 21st - Resident Council Meeting at 11am 
Wednesday, November 20th – Let’s Talk Food meeting at 2:00pm 
Monday, November 11th – 82nd Airborne Veteran Ceremony  
 
Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Samantha discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights that are 
reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual survey, 
and today we will be reviewing Food. 
Food: (October) 

• Is the flavor and appearance of your food satisfactory? 
 
X reported food appearance was not the most appetizing. 
X said the flavor is good.  
All others said food was satisfactory. 

Page 7 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
2



 
 

• Outside of the dietary restrictions some of you may have, do you receive food here 
that you like to eat? 

X said yes but would like to see more variety.  
 

• If you have ever refused to eat a particular food, did the facility provide you with 
something else to eat? 

Multiple residents said that they were offered something else to eat.  
 

• Is the temperature of your hot and cold foods appropriate? 

X said that his food was not warm enough, but he likes his food to be really hot.  
 

• Are the meats tender enough? 

Meats are tender 
 

• At what time do you receive your breakfast, lunch and dinner? Are the meals serves 
within the scheduled meal delivery times? 
Birch 9:15am; 1:15pm; 5:45pm 
Cherry – 9:00am; 1:00pm; 5:30pm 
Dogwood – 8:45am; 12:45pm; 5:15pm 
X reported that meals sometimes take a while, X agreed. X said that meal delivery is 
fine.  

 

• What are you offered for a bedtime snack? 

Chips, cookies, yogurt, ice cream 
 

• If you ever had a concern about your food, did you tell the staff? What was their 
response? 
X said that when he was concerned with his meal, staff were quick to call the kitchen 
to get something else.  
 
 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

 
No concerns regarding food temperature and snacks.  
A few residents gave suggestions of foods that they would like to have on the menu.  
 

Page 8 of 44



2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
 
Residents had no concerns about the cleanliness of the facility and/or laundry.   
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  

 
X reported that his issue with the temperature in his room has been resolved.  
 
X reported the temperature in her room was too cold, ES sent staff to investigate that 
day.  
 
Residents reported that both the housekeeping staff and custodians are good.  
 
4.  Discussion regarding nursing care. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
 
X reported that the nurses are good, day shift CNA’s are particularly good. This resident 
also reported that he felt as though new staff were not being familiarized with him and 
his needs prior to working with him.  
 
X asked why her CNA’s are being transferred to different floors. Staff explained that 
new CNA’s have started so she may be seeing new faces.  Nursing to follow up.  
 
No further concerns noted.  
 
5.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 

 
X reported that it occasionally will take awhile for call lights to be responded to.  
 
Other residents reported that the call light response was good.  
 

6.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:              
 
X reported water temperature inconsistency. Maintenance request was entered that 
day.  
No other concerns noted.  

Page 9 of 44



 
 
7. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on your Pavilion. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions: 
 
X reported that staff would continue conversations when assisting roommate during the 
night. 

 
Other residents reported that the noise level was good.  
 

The floor was opened for additional comments: 
 
X wanted to recognize the staff for everything they do for all the residents. She reported 
that she is incredibly thankful to everyone.  
 

  
The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on November 21st at 11:00am 
in the Multi-Purpose Room. Samantha asked for a volunteer to read over and sign the 
October 2024 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Pavilions Resident 
Council Meeting was adjourned at 11:40 am by Samantha, seconded by X.      
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_______________________   
Samantha Mahon, CTRS     
Recreational Therapist                
 
 
_______________________ 
____________, Dogwood Pavilion Resident 
 
 
 

Page 10 of 44



 

Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- October 23 2024 

 
The March meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to order at 
11:03am in the Elm Common Area. 
 
Members Present were: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
9 Residents  attended. 
Staff Present: 
Susan Eldred, Recreation Therapist 
Naomi Rode, Assistant Director of Nursing 
Emily Tyrrell, Social Worker 
 
Old Business:  
None 
 
New Business: 
Asked the residents if they need help do the staff help them.  
X stated “yes, definitely.” X and X stated “yeah” and X stated “yes.” 
 
Asked the residents if they were being offered a snack before bed.  
X stated “yes” and X stated “yeah” X stated “no.” Staff was reminded to offer snack before bed.  
 
Asked the residents if the staff were respectful to the residents.  
X, X and X stated “yes” they were treated with respect. 
 
Asked the residents if the food is good here.  
X stated “yes” the food is good. X stated “yeah” and X stated “yeah.” 
 
Asked the residents if the rooms were getting cleaned.  
X, X and X stated “yes” rooms were being cleaned. 
 
Asked the residents if their clothes are getting cleaned. 
X and X stated “yes.” X stated “I don’t know.” 
 
Asked the residents if the Temperature in the room is good.  
X and X stated “yes” and X stated “ Yes it is.” 
 
Asked the residents if they have enough to do. 
X stated “I don’t know” and X stated “yeah.” X and X stated “yes.” 
 
Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments.  
 
Suggestions for upcoming activities: 
Apple/Cherry Pie 
Corn Casserole 
Ice cream-X 

Page 11 of 44



 

 
Meeting was closed at 11:23am 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Susan Eldred, CTRS  Naomi Rode, BSN, RN   Emily Tyrrell, LLBSW 
 

Page 12 of 44



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

October 2024 

  

Date: 10/07/2024 
Employee: Julie Alber 

Awarded for: 

Julie regularly offers support to CNAs, providing guidance and assistant whenever 
needed, and fostering a collaborative environment that enhances patient care. Julie also 
goes above and beyond to engage with residents, ensuring they receive compassionate 
and attentive care. 

Position: RN 

Nominated by: Jamie Wilson (Staff Development Coordinator) 

 
 
 

 

Date: 10/07/2024 
Employee: Jessica Cobb 

Awarded for: 
Jessica took a lot of extra time at the end of her workday to provide extra care to a 
resident. Jessica always goes above and beyond for her residents, to make sure they 
are well cared for and have the services that they need. 

Position: Occupational Therapist 

Nominated by: Kristen Semeyn (Wellness Center Director) 

 
 
 
 

Date: 10/14/2024 
Employee: Jennifer Johnson 

Awarded for: 

Jennifer has been doing a great job of keeping track of faxes and getting them back 
timely, scanning charts in, getting new patients contacted and scheduled just to name a 
few of the MANY tasks she keeps organized every day. 
Thank you Jennifer! 

Position: Wellness Office Manager  

Nominated by: Kristen Semeyn (Wellness Center Director)  

 
 
 
 

Date: 10/14/2024 
Employee: Marion Porter 

Awarded for: 

Marion consistently takes on assignments with a smile and a positive attitude, making a 
meaningful impact on both residents and her team. Marion is always willing to take on 
extra tasks, demonstrating a strong work ethic and commitment to ensuring our 
residents have engaging and enriching experiences. Her willingness to go above and 
beyond truly stands out! 

Position: CNA – Activities 

Nominated by: Liz Payne (Director of Nursing) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
3



 

Date: 10/21/2024 
Employee: Adrian Reed 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for jumping in and stepping up with activities and patient care on Cherry unit! 
I appreciate all your effort and true care. It doesn't go unnoticed! 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Nikki Dobson (RN) 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: 10/21/2024 
Employee: Arlette Marino 

Awarded for: 

She regularly helps out by floating on the weekend to help her team and her residents. 
Her willingness to go above and beyond, paired with her refreshing positivity, makes a 
significant difference at our Cottages. She truly is a team player and an invaluable asset 
to our team. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Amanda Prance (Lead Scheduling Coordinator) 

Date: 10/28/2024 
Employee: Kirk Mallow 

Awarded for: 

We know that our ES team takes really good care of everyone in this building, but just 
want to shout out as well how caring they are to our outpatient Wellness clients as well.  
Kirk was awesome in responding this morning to an outpatient that had something 
wrong with her walker and attempting to see if it was something easily fixable (it wasn't, 
but not for his lack of trying!)  Thank you, Kirk, for your kindness and helping us out here 
in the Wellness Center, at times with little notice.  We consider ourselves extremely 
lucky to have your knowledge and skills right across the hallway from the Wellness 
Center! 

Position:  Maintenance Technician 

Nominated by: Carrie Baldwin (Physical Therapist) 

Date: 10/28/2024 
Employee: Matthew Gorsuch 

Awarded for: Thank you for your attention to detail when cleaning childcare floors! 
Position:  Custodian 

Nominated by: Darcey Gratton (Administrative Services Director) 

Page 14 of 44



Page 15 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
4



Page 16 of 44



 
 

TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
FROM: Gerard Bodalski, CEO/Administrator       
RE:  October CEO/Administrator Report 
 
Census (Average Daily Census) 
 Nov-MTD Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

Medical Care 
Facility (MCF) 

163 173 168 167 164 166 168 

Cottages 58 61 63 63 60 57 54 

 
MCF Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

Admissions & Re-admits 55 52 63 63 55 68 

Discharges 55 48 61 59 62 61 

MMC Referrals 210 169 215 208 169 166 

MMC Denied 35 26 41 38 27 37 

Transfers to LTC 5 3 2 3 3 2 

 
Cottages Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

Admissions 1 3 3 3 5 2 

Respite 7 6 6 5 4 6 

Discharges  2 0 0 2 1 2 

 
Finance 

 Oct-24 Sept-24 August-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

Combined Net Income $47,415 $106,264 **$1,101,297 $44,212 $77,019 $178,240 

MCF   
Net Income 

$54,974 $124,307 $1,122,407 $67,724 $106,343 $140,058 

Cottage  
Net Income 

$(7,560) $(18,043) $(21,110) $(22,511) $(29,324) *$38,182 

Cash Balance $3,853,444 $3,615,910 $3,506,346 $3,438,728 $3,317,575 $2,971,674 

A/R Days Sales 
Outstanding 

58 60 60 54 54 55 

*Scholarship funds of $70,939.36 received from GTP Foundation. 
**Notified of cost settlement from 10/1/22 – 9/30/23 of $1,024,304. 

  

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Actual PPD 

$468 $469 $452 $457 $465 $463 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Budgeted PPD 

$453 $457 $453 $453 $457 $453 

Variance 
(unfavorable)/favorable 

$(15) $(12) $1 $(4)  $(8)  $(10)  

 
           

Facility Reported Incidents 
 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

Medical Care Facility 7 4 5 6 4 2 

Page 17 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
5



2 
 

Wellness Center 
Numbers of Patients seen: Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

Medicare A 27 38 48 43 37 38 

Medicare Advantage Skilled 36 30 35 39 38 43 

Private Insurance: Inpatient 3 2 5 5 2 3 

Private Pay: Inpatient 2 0 2 3 1 0 

Auto: Inpatient 0 1 0 0 0 1 

Med A/Rehab Inpatient 
Totals 

68 71 90 90 78 85 

       

Medicaid 5 2 2 0 0 1 

Medicare B: Inpatient 42 40 38 39 7 38 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Inpatient 

19 14 10 7 40 13 

Med B Inpatient Totals 66 56 50 46 47 52 

       

Medicare B: Outpatient 26 20 21 21 22 22 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Outpatient 

48 51 52 60 46 46 

Private Insurance: 
Outpatient 

21 18 17 18 17 21 

Work Compensation: 
Outpatient 

0 0 0 0 0 1 

Private Pay: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Auto: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Outpatient Totals 95 89 90 99 85 90 

       

Numbers of Wellness 
Center Visits: 

      

Aquatic inpatients therapy 
visits 

16 20 18 2 21 35 

Aquatic aftercare visits per 
month 

312 342 341 325 269 344 

Aquatic outpatient PT visits 184 148 170 206 165 170 

Aquatic group class 
participants 

89 54 86 85 57 74 

Land therapy visits (PT, OT, 
SLP) 

266 208 253 170 214 262 

Total Outpatient therapy 
visit 

450 356 423 462 379 432 

       

Outpatient aquatic therapy 
revenue 

49,639.40 42,934.12 47,997.47 53,398.88 46,180.65 49,719.42 

Aftercare monthly revenue 3,120 3420 3410 3250 2690 3,400 

Aquatic group class 
revenue 

1,780 1080 1720 1700 1140 1,480 

Cottages visits 41 34 59 61 59 45 

Total Wellness center 
revenue 

54,539.40 47,434.12 53,127.47 60,348.88 50,010.65 54,639.42 

 
Staffing 

 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

Hires 15 35 2 7 21 2 

Resignations  3 5 4 8 7 6 

Referrals 3 9 7 9 2 8 

Total # Employees 332 325 307 311 308 303 

Nov MDT # 339 employees 
Talent Sourcing and Recruiting is underway for the following positions: CNAs, UWs 

 

Page 18 of 44



3 
 

Activities 
Recreational Therapists in the life enrichment department continue to complete video chats 
throughout the month for 6 residents over FaceTime or Google Duo. 
 
Activities, Special Events and Outings that occurred in October included small group activities such 
as Bird Care; Card Group including Euchre and Uno, Word Games (Name that Tune and 
Scategories); and Creative Kitchen group baking items for mocktail hour such as fruit skewers, 
Halloween cake, and apple pie. Residents engage in arts and crafts with creative coloring, pumpkin 
painting, spiders, and wreath making. In addition to helping fold the weekly Pavilions Post, residents 
continue to attend book club meetings with the start of their third book, The Artic Drift this month. 
Residents continue to check out books from the book mobile that visits monthly with rotating reading 
material to check out. Residents participated in morning stretch/exercise groups throughout the week. 
Song circle group continues to take place throughout the building including Maple rehab pavilion as a 
morning and afternoon activity in hallways and common areas. Large group activities that were held 
included: Drum Circles, Bingo, Bingo Store, Popcorn Fridays & Movies and Tuesday Mocktails. 
Special events that took place during October were Tyler’s Exotic Zoo visit, Lord of the gourds 
pumpkin carving, Halloween Party, trick or treating down Main Street, and Voter registration. The 
Salvation Army music group, Bob and Tally, and the Lyrical Hiker came to perform music for 
residents in the multipurpose room. Livestreaming of church services from Central United Methodist 
Church, Gaither’s Gospel and St. Francis of Assisi continues Sunday’s. Catholic church services 
were attended with Catholic Mass with Father Joe once this month, and Rosary & Holy Communion 
weekly.  Outings that residents signed up for include 2 fall color tours and Dollar Tree. Elm residents 
have participated in various sensory group activities including-sensory cart, coloring, crafts. They 
engage in song circle twice a week with life enrichment staff. They participate in small group morning 
exercise. Cognitive groups include trivia, Jeopardy, history, categories, large dice games, book clubs 
and jokes. Residents participated in a pie social and creative kitchen. Residents engage in weekly 
intergenerational visits from the children of the Pavilions Day care center and various sing a long 
activity as well as weekly movie and popcorn activity. Elm residents attended a fall color tour outing.  
 
On October 16th, Let’s Talk Food Meeting was held and on October 17th the Pavilions Resident 
Council meeting for residents was held for all pavilions to come together to meet. Elm Resident 
Council was held separately on October 23rd.  
   
Environmental Services 

• Our new large bus is Complete. Delivery should be around the middle of November. 

 

• Our Life Safety Survey re-evaluation was completed with no issues. 

 

• We installed new ceiling lights and a dimmable switch in our Daycare room. 

 

• We are still finalizing some details for the Pool re-surfacing in December. The pool area will be 

painted, all tile cleaned after re-surfacing is complete and replacing all the flooring in the Beech 

gym. 

 

• 3 of our ES Dept employees were awarded the service excellence award for attention to detail, 

timely response and great attitudes. 

 
• We nominated our housekeeper Gretchen for the states Leading Age Awards for her 24 years 

of service at the Pavilions. 

Page 19 of 44



1 

 

GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Financial Operations Report 

October 2024 

 

Finance 

 Oct-24 Sept-24 August-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

Combined Net Income $47,415 $106,264 **$1,101,297 $44,212 $77,019 $178,240 

MCF   

Net Income 

$54,974 $124,307 $1,122,407 $67,724 $106,343 $140,058 

Cottage  

Net Income 

$(7,560) $(18,043) $(21,110) $(22,511) $(29,324) *$38,182 

Cash Balance $3,853,444 $3,615,910 $3,506,346 $3,438,728 $3,317,575 $2,971,674 

A/R Days Sales Outstanding 58 60 60 54 54 55 

*Scholarship funds of $70,939.36 received from GTP Foundation. 

**Notified of cost settlement from 10/1/22 – 9/30/23 of $1,024,304. 

  

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 Oct-24 Sept-24 Aug-24 July-24 June-24 May-24 

MCF Operating Expenses 

Actual PPD 

$468 $469 $452 $457 $465 $463 

MCF Operating Expenses 

Budgeted PPD 

$453 $457 $453 $453 $457 $453 

Variance 

(unfavorable)/favorable 

$(15) $(12) $1 $(4)  $(8)  $(10)  

 

 

Grand Traverse Pavilions Combined 

 

REVENUE:      

The overall revenue for the Pavilions in October was $2,903,964 resulting in a favorable 
budget variance of $474,647.   
         

EXPENSES:        
The total overall operating expenses for the Pavilions in October were $2,856,550 resulting in 
an unfavorable variance to budget of $481,280.  

     
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

There was net income of $47,415 from the combined programs of the Pavilions in October 
resulting in an unfavorable budget variance of $6,633.  

 
OPERATING CASH:     

Total cash at month-end was $3,853,444. There was a net increase (more brought in than was 
spent) in overall cash of $237,534 for the month.  
 
There were no irregular cash inflows during the month of October.  Irregular payments from 
Medicaid will total $4,862,362.21 in November including Certified Public Expenditure funds of 
$903,648.21 which will mostly function as an interest free loan.  
 

Page 20 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
6



2 

 

The schedule of irregular payments outflows from GTP includes an adjustment to the expected 
timing of a few items from October to November.   The retention pay approved at the October 
board meeting was added to the schedule for December.   
  

VOUCHERS:        
Purchase orders, invoices, checks written, and supporting documentation were reviewed for 
voucher numbers 5584-5594 for the month of October and were in order without exception.  

 
 
 

Grand Traverse Medical Care 

REVENUE:    
The census for October averaged 173 residents which was twenty-eight above the budgeted 
census and five more than the prior month.  Private pay census was ten above budget, 
Medicare was four above budget, Medicaid was twenty-one above budget and Hospice was 
seven below the budgeted census.  The occupancy for October was 72% of licensed beds and 
83% of available beds.    As a reminder, available beds increased from 182 to 207 as of July 1.  
Year to date occupancy is 68% of licensed beds and 85% of available beds. 
 
The average rate per patient day (“PPD”) for resident revenue was $1.56 over budget 
(favorable).   
 
Other revenue was $284,429 on a budget of $140,200 resulting in a favorable variance of 
$144,229 for the month, in line with most prior months. 
 
Total revenue was $526,459 more than budgeted for the month. 
 
The Institutional Special Needs Plan sponsored by Longevity Health went live on October 1, 
2024.  As a reminder, for those long-term residents who chose the plan will benefit from 
systems designed to reduce hospitalizations and Emergency Room visitations, improve 
resident care, provide flexibility for providing supplemental therapy, improve QM measures 
and, depending on enrollment, add revenue to the organization.  There were 14 residents 
enrolled in this program for October and 21 for November.  Enrollment efforts are ongoing. 
 

 
EXPENSES:   
  Operating Expenses were $14.92 per patient day more than budgeted for the month resulting 

in a flexed unfavorable variance of $79,897.  This compares to 12.75 per patient day and 
$63,763 variance in September. 

 
 All of the over budget expenses were offset by the Recruitment and Retention Grant and the 

Direct Care Worker Wage Reimbursement payments.   Legal and professional fees recorded 
in October totaled $51,302.  

 
 
NET INCOME/LOSS: 

Grand Traverse Medical Care produced net income of $54,974 for the month, which was 
$57,054 better than budgeted.  
 

 

Page 21 of 44



3 

 

 
RECEIVABLES: 

Days Revenue Outstanding (“DRO”) is 58 days as of 10/31/2024.  This is two less than as of 
9/30/2024.  Our goal is to reduce that number to 45 days.   
 
There were six filed Medicaid applications waiting for a determination as of the end of the 
October with total balance due of $149,236.  One of those has now been approved and billed 
to Medicaid. 
 
One additional Medicaid application was filed and approved in November (through November 
19) and one private pay resident has filed a Medicaid application during the month that is 
awaiting approval. 
 
There are also four private pay residents who have not paid their current bill and have 
indicated that they are in the process of filing a Medicaid application. 
 
Our largest private pay balance is due from a resident whose attorney is Nathan Piwowarski 
with McCurdy, Wotila, and Porteoous, PC.  We received confirmation that the resident is 
eligible for Medicaid beginning October 23, 2024.  We have received some payment from the 
spouse and continue to follow up. 
 
Our former biller stepped in beginning September 5 and completed her work on October 31.  
She successfully rebilled our 1/1/2023 through 9/30/2023 Medicaid claims so the State of 
Michigan could process, in November, our full Medicaid cost settlements for 2022 and 2023 
totaling $4.8M including Certified Public Expenditure funds.  
 
Our former business office manager began working on October 30 and has rebilled insurance 
claims totaling over $400,000 and continues her efforts. 
 
Our current business office manager is focused on resolving certification and billing issues for 
the outpatient facility with WPS and Priority Health.  The certification process appears to be 
nearing completion with regular communication from WPS. 
 
 

The Cottages 
 
REVENUE:  

Total revenue of $304,501 generated a $30,411 unfavorable variance to the budget.    
 
The average leased occupancy for the Cottages-Assisted Living was 54 apartments (plus 1 
spouse) during the month (6 below budget, one less than the prior month), representing 70% 
occupancy.  In addition, there were 115 days (average of 4 per night) of overnight respite 
provided during the month (13 less than the prior month).   Hawthorn Lofts-Independent Living 
average census was 2 residents per day for 67% occupancy. Total average census of 61 
residents (two less than the prior month). 
 

 Occupancy includes an average of 12 Pace North residents in the Cottages. 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 44



4 

 

EXPENSES:  
Expenses for October (before depreciation) were $288,739 which was above the budgeted 
amount by $33,276 for an unfavorable variance.  
 
 

NET INCOME/LOSS: 
The program had a net loss for the month of $7,560 resulting in an unfavorable variance of 
$63,687. 
 

Unassigned Fund Balance 
 

Approved 2024 Operating Budget       $ 28.7M   
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Percentage                20% 
Unassigned Fund Balance Target Amount                 $5.7M 
Current Unassigned Fund Balance*          $3.9M 
Current Fund Balance as a percentage of Operating Budget         14%  
Amount Available Above/ (Below) Target      ($1.8)M 
 
*Fund balance is different from a cash balance as it includes other assets and is net of current 
liabilities.  Those items do not generally change significantly so we are reporting here on the cash 
balance amount.  The policy requires a review of the actual fund balance annually. 

Page 23 of 44



Page 24 of 44



Page 25 of 44



Page 26 of 44



Page 27 of 44



Page 28 of 44



Page 29 of 44



Page 30 of 44



Page 31 of 44



Page 32 of 44



Page 33 of 44



Page 34 of 44



Page 35 of 44



Page 36 of 44



Page 37 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
7



Page 38 of 44



Page 39 of 44



 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

Telephone Number: 932-3000 
 
 

Resolution 2024 - 3 
Grand Traverse Pavilions/Grand Traverse Medical Care 

 
 

Approval of Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS,   pursuant to the proposed Bylaws of the Grand Traverse Pavilions 

Foundation, the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board appoints all Trustees to the Grand Traverse Pavilions 
Foundation Board of Trustees. 

 
 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED,  

that pursuant to such Bylaws the following person is hereby appointed as 
Trustee of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board of Trustees: 

    
      Mike Buday 
 
 
APPROVED       ____             
DISAPPROVED ____              
 
at the November 25, 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board. 
 
 
 ___________________________________________________________ 
 Mary Marois, Chair 
 Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 __________________       
 Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
8



 

 

BOARD MEMBER BIOGRAPHY 

 
Name:              

 
Home address and phone number:         

 
              

 
Office address and phone number:         

 
              
 
              

 
Preferred address for mailing information: Home  Office 
 
Additional contact information (e-mail address, fax or cell phone numbers, etc.)   

 
              
 
              

 
Name of Spouse:            
 
Educational Background:           

 
              
 
              

 
Current and previous civic involvement (include offices held/awards/recognition):   
 
              
 
              
 
              

 
Do you have a head and shoulders photo on file with an area photographer? Yes  No 
 
If Yes, where?            
 
 
L: Foundation\Board of Trustees\Old Board Member Files\Biography – lg   
1/25/06 

Page 41 of 44

Michele Buday
Mike Buday

Michele Buday
 4386 Apple Tree Lane, Traverse City, Mi. 49685

Michele Buday
                

Michele Buday
231-357-4114

Michele Buday
Same

Michele Buday
mobile

Michele Buday

�

Michele Buday
mike@abimechanical.com

Michele Buday
Michele Buday

Michele Buday
Michigan Technological University BSME; LEED AP 

Michele Buday
Boards: Traverse City builders Exchange, Michigan Plumbing Mechanical Contrtactors 

Michele Buday
Assoc., Michigan Tech Alumni board, State of Mi Plumbing, Mechanical Contractors Assoc.   

Michele Buday
of America, YMCA. 

Michele Buday
 

Michele Buday
Yes

Michele Buday
Yes - John Robert Williams Photography

Michele Buday


dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box



 
 

 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 

Telephone Number: 932-3000 
 
 

Resolution 2024 - 4 
Grand Traverse Pavilions/Grand Traverse Medical Care 

 
 

Approval of Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS,   pursuant to the proposed Bylaws of the Grand Traverse Pavilions 

Foundation, the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board appoints all Trustees to the Grand Traverse Pavilions 
Foundation Board of Trustees. 

 
 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED,  

that pursuant to such Bylaws the following person is hereby appointed as 
Trustee of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board of Trustees: 

    
      Christy Jonkhoff-Hater 
 
 
APPROVED       ____             
DISAPPROVED ____              
 
at the November 25, 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human 
Services Board. 
 
 
 ___________________________________________________________ 
 Mary Marois, Chair 
 Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
 __________________       
 Date 

 
 
 

 

Page 42 of 44

dgratton
Text Box
9



 

 

BOARD MEMBER BIOGRAPHY 

 
Name:              

 
Home address and phone number:         

 
              

 
Office address and phone number:         

 
              
 
              

 
Preferred address for mailing information: Home  Office 
 
Additional contact information (e-mail address, fax or cell phone numbers, etc.)   

 
              
 
              

 
Name of Spouse:            
 
Educational Background:           

 
              
 
              

 
Current and previous civic involvement (include offices held/awards/recognition):   
 
              
 
              
 
              

 
Do you have a head and shoulders photo on file with an area photographer? Yes  No 
 
If Yes, where?            
 
 
L: Foundation\Board of Trustees\Old Board Member Files\Biography – lg   
1/25/06 

Christy M. Jonkhoff-Hater

3450 Country Club Dr., Traverse City, MI 49684

Direct Cell 231-631-2345

Reynolds-Jonkhoff Funeral Home, 305 6th Street, Traverse City, MI 49684

W- 231-947-6347 or Direct Cell 231-631-2345

xxxx

Chrisj@rjfhfamily.com

Fax 231-947-2906

Brian J. Hater

Bachelors from Michigan State University 

Degree from Worsham College of Mortuary Science 

Traverse City Junior Golf Association- Past Board Member 12 years 

Multiple Committee's at the Traverse City Golf and Country Club- Past

Current District 8 Michigan Funeral Directors Association District Director 

x

Don Rutt 231-342-0150

Page 43 of 44

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box



Page 44 of 44

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
10


